
Name of the researcher: Michelle R. Maziwisa 

Name of the municipality: Okhahlamba Local Municipality 

Province: KwaZulu Natal 

National Treasury classification: B41 

Population size: 132,068 

Budget: R 252,740,000 

 

1. Does the municipality have a functional website? Does the website have a dedicated page for 
procurement information, which can be accessed without registration? 

a. Yes, the municipality has a functional website with a dedicated page for procurement 
information, and this information can be accessed without registration. 

b. Yes, the municipality has a functional website but the website has no procurement 
information or the municipality has a functional website with a dedicated page for 
procurement information, but registration is required to access this information. 

c. No, the municipality does not have a functional website. 
 
Answer: A 
Source: https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/ (accessed 29 October 2020) 
Comments: The municipality has an easily accessible webpage for procurement at first glance (as 
will be elaborated on below in the questions that follow). It has a drop down tab for Supply Chain 
Management, under this tab are a few tabs on bids, awarded bids, bidder information, tenders, 
quotations and notices.  
 
 

 

                                                           
1 Category B4 are Local municipalities that are mainly rural with communal tenure and with, at most, one or 

two small towns in their area. 

https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/


2. Does the municipality publish tender notices? 

a. Yes, the municipality publishes tender notices and the list of tender notices seems 
complete. 

b. Yes, the municipality publishes tender notices but the list of tender notices has obvious 
gaps or the list seems incomplete. 

c. No, there are no tender notices on the municipality’s website. 
 
Answer: A 
Source:  
Notices https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/notices/  (accessed 29 October 2020) 
Bids : https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/bids/  (accessed 29 October 2020) 
eTender Portal- https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/content/advertised-tenders  (accessed 04 
November 2020) 
Comments: The municipality publishes tender notices, but they are difficult to find. One would 
imagine that tender notices will be available under the tab ‘Notices’, but they are actually under the 
heading ‘Bids’. Additionally, the tender notices are also available on the eTender Portal (see below). 
 

 
 
Bids:  

 

https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/notices/
https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/content/advertised-tenders


 
eTender Portal:  

 
 
3. Does the municipality publish tender specifications for tender notices on its website, can they 

be downloaded free of charge? 

a. Yes, the municipality publishes tender specifications on its website, which are 
downloadable free of charge.  

b. Yes, the municipality publishes tender specifications, which are downloadable free of 

charge but only for some tender notices or the municipality publishes tender 

specifications but it imposes a cost to access the specifications. 

c. No, the municipality does not publish tender specifications. 

 
Answer: C 
Source: https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/bids/ (accessed 30 October 2020). 
Example 1 on the ETender Portal: https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/content/communications-
publications-newsletterservice-delivery-booklets (accessed 04 November 2020) 
Example 2 on the eTender Portal: 
https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/sites/default/files/tenders/COMMUNICATIONS%20PUBLICATIONS.
pdf (accessed 05 November 2020) 
Comments: I selected C because I was not able to find tender specifications on the municipal website 

or the eTender Portal for the period under review. I also noticed that the eTender Portal has tender 

specifications for this municipality, but they are for periods outside the review period. I interpreted 

this as an indication that the general practice is to publish tender specifications on the eTender Portal. 

However, this does not alter the answer selection C. The screenshots below illustrate my observations. 

Municipal website:  

https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/bids/
https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/content/communications-publications-newsletterservice-delivery-booklets
https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/content/communications-publications-newsletterservice-delivery-booklets
https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/sites/default/files/tenders/COMMUNICATIONS%20PUBLICATIONS.pdf
https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/sites/default/files/tenders/COMMUNICATIONS%20PUBLICATIONS.pdf


 

Once I clicked on Bid Notice 3, I found a list of tenders and how to submit bids, but no information of 

tender specifications (see list below).  

 

 

eTender Portal: 

 



 

 



 

4. Does the municipality publish the name of companies or individuals who win tenders on its 

website? Does it do so on time (i.e. within five working days after the award)? 

a. Yes, the municipality publishes information about who wins tenders within five working 
days. 

b. Yes, the municipality publishes information about who wins tenders but after five 

working days or the list of names of companies or individuals who won the tender has 

obvious gaps or seems incomplete. 

c. No, the municipality does not publish information about who wins tenders. 
 

Answer: C 
Source: https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/awarded-bids/ (accessed 04 
November 2020)  
Comments: The municipality does not publish the name of the companies or individuals who 
win the tenders, but it publishes intentions to award. In other words, the municipality has a 
webpage for Awarded Tenders, but on this page, there is a list of documents with headings 
‘Intention to Award…’ However, there were no bids for the current period of assessment. 

● I found it interesting that the municipality publishes an ‘Intention to Award Contracts’ 
stating the name of the company which would be awarded the contract, but the use of 
the word ‘intention’ makes it unclear.  

● One could say that the intention of publishing an intention is to enable interested 
persons to challenge the intended contractor, if necessary, which is a good thing. 
However, the notice does not go further to provide the details of the bid by Vodacom in 
this document and it does not invite interested persons to challenge the intention. 

● Neither does it provide the price of the bid, or other details for the contract. This makes 
it a bit confusing because there is no final list of who exactly was awarded the contract, 
in other words, one is left guessing whether the ‘intention’ to award the contract (in this 
case to Vodacom) was in fact fulfilled, and that the ‘intention’ is in fact not an intention, 
but rather a notice of the finally selected contractor. 

 

https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/awarded-bids/


 
 

 
 
 

5. Do tender specifications remain accessible on the website after the contract has been 

awarded for the duration of the contract? 

a. Yes, the tender specifications remain accessible on the website after the contract has 
been awarded for the duration of the contract.  

b. Yes, the tender specifications remain accessible on the website after the contract has 
been awarded but not for the entire duration of the contract or not all tender 
specification information remains accessible on the website for the entire duration of 
the relevant contracts. 

c. No, the tender specifications are removed after the award of the contract or the 
municipality does not publish tender specifications. 



 
Answer: C 
Source: https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/awarded-bids/(accessed 29 October 
2020) 
Comments: I did not find specifications for tenders (cross ref response to question 3). I was only able 
to find specifications for requests for quotations on the municipal website, but not for tenders. I was 
able to find ‘requests for quotations’ from August 2019 and prior to that date. This illustrates that 
specifications for quotations are available long after the contract has been awarded, but not for 
tenders. One must question why these two are treated differently. In fact tenders might be said to 
require more transparency because of the larger prices, in comparison to quotations. In other words, 
I did not see any tender specifications available on the municipal website and the eTender Portal both 
before and after the award of the contract.  
  
6. Does a municipality publish the price of the contract? 

a. Yes, the municipality publishes the price of the contract. 
b. Yes, the municipality publishes the price of the contract but does not seem to publish 

the price of contracts for all tenders 
c. No, the municipality does not publish the price of the contract. 

 
Answer: C 
Source: https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/awarded-bids/ (accessed 30 October 
2020) 
Comments: I was only able to find a tab for ‘awarded contracts’, but on that page there was only a 
list of intention to award, and in these documents, there are no details of the price of the contract, 
only the name of the company which would be awarded the contract. I say ‘would’ because it is an 
‘intention ‘document, not apparently ‘final’ (see below). 
 

 
 
 

 

https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/awarded-bids/
https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/awarded-bids/


7. Does the municipality publish any information on how the project will be implemented, for 

instance, timelines and deliverables, otherwise known as service delivery agreements or 

implementation plans? 

a. Yes, the municipality publishes information on how the project will be implemented. 
b. Yes, the municipality publishes information on how the project will be implemented, but 

the list of service delivery agreement or implementation plans has obvious gaps or the 
list seems incomplete. 

c. No, the municipality does not publish information on how the project will be 
implemented. 

Answer: C 
Source: https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/awarded-bids/  (accessed 29 
October 2020) 
Comments: The municipal website does not provide any information on how the project will be 
implemented. It only provides a list on ‘intention to award contract’ which once opened, reveals 
only the name of the preferred company. However, this is merely title intention and not clearly 
the final selection. Which means communities would have to guess whether a specific company 
was in fact in the end awarded the contract or if it was challenged, and a different company 
preferred. For example, see below.  
 

 
 

8. Does the municipality publish procurement information on both its website and the eTender 

portal? 

a. Yes, the municipality publishes procurement information on both its website and the 
eTender portal. 

b. Yes, the municipality publishes procurement information on both its website and the 
eTender portal but the information on these two platforms does not correspond. 

c. No, the municipality only publishes procurement information on either its website or the 
eTender portal. 

d. No, the municipality does not publish procurement information on either its website or 
the eTender portal. 

Answer: B 

https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/awarded-bids/


Source:  
Municipal website https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/bids/ (accessed 29 
October 2020) 
eTender Portal https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/content/advertised-tenders (accessed 29 
October 2020) 
Comments: While the municipality publishes information on both the municipal website and the 
eTender Portal, the information on the two websites is not the same. For example, the eTender 
Portal only has two tenders advertised currently for this municipality, but the municipality has 
several advertised tenders (see below). For example, tenders opening on 08 October 2020, there 
is one on the eTender Portal, but five on the municipal website, and the tenders advertised on 
each platform are not appearing on the other platform. Since the eTender Portal removes older 
tender adverts, I used the adverts that were available when the research was conducted (29 
October 2020 for this question). 
 
Municipal website  

 
 
eTender Portal  
 

https://okhahlamba.gov.za/supply-chain-management/bids/
https://etenders.treasury.gov.za/content/advertised-tenders


 
 

 

 

General assessment: 

a) What is your overall impression on how easy it is to navigate the municipal website to find 

procurement information? Rate out of 10? 

It was not easy to navigate this website. I would rate it 5/10. The headings do not match the 

information under the headings.  

b) Any tips on how the municipality could improve citizens’ access to procurement information on 

its website?  

The municipality needs to create a friendlier user interface.  

c) Are there any best practices in the municipality which can be shared with other municipalities? 

The municipality publishes ‘intentions to award tenders’ which presents entry points for 

communities to challenge specific awards. However, the fact that the intention is not accompanied 

with the tender specifications and the bid of the selected company reduces the potential for 

communities to challenge the intended award prior to its finalisation.  

d) Are there any other issues that caught your attention when undertaking the assessment? 

It seems that the municipality has good intentions to be transparent, but the information is not 

sufficient and it is not very well organised in the sense that it is difficult to find.  

 


